
NOTICE OF A REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE OLIVENHAIN MUNICIPAL WATER 

DISTRICT’S FINANCE COMMITTEE 
1966 Olivenhain Road, Encinitas, CA 92024 
Tel: (760) 753-6466 • Fax: (760) 753-1578 

Pursuant to AB 3035, effective January 1, 2003, any person who 

requires a disability related modification or accommodation in 

order to participate in a public meeting shall make such a 

request in writing to the District for immediate consideration. 

DATE: WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 7, 2024

TIME: 2:00 P.M. 

PLACE: HYBRID REGULAR MEETING VIA ZOOM AND IN-PERSON 

The meeting is being held virtually as a convenience to the public. The meeting will not stop 
or suspend its in-person meeting should a technological interruption occur with respect to 
the Zoom or call-on options listed on the agenda.  

 For Zoom Participation:             For Zoom Call-in Only:  
        www.zoom.us/join               Call: (669) 900-9128  
 Meeting ID: 891 0550 0774          Meeting ID: 891 0550 0774 
         Passcode: 648031               Passcode: 648031  

Public Participation/Comment: Members of the public can participate in the meeting by 
emailing your comments on an agenda item to Jared Graffam at jgraffam@olivenhain.com 
or address the finance committee directly in real-time under the public comment section. If 
you do not receive a confirmation email that your comment has been received, please call 
(760) 230-2569 or address the committee under the public comment section to ensure that
your comments are heard in real-time. The subject line of your email should clearly state the
item number you are commenting on and should include your name and phone number. All
comments will be emailed to the finance committee members.

Note: Items On The Agenda May Be Taken Out Of Sequential Order As Their 
Priority Is Determined By The Committee 

1

http://www.zoom.us/join


1. CALL TO ORDER

2. ROLL CALL (BOARD MEMBERS)

3. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS

5. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE NOVEMBER 2, 2023 
REGULAR FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING

6. REVIEW OF 2024 WASTEWATER RATE STUDY WITH RAFTELIS FINANCIAL 
CONSULTANTS

7. REVIEW OF DISTRICT INVESTMENTS AND CASH REPORT FOR FOURTH 
QUARTER 2023
7a. UPDATE LIST OF OMWD APPROVED INVESTMENT BROKERAGE FIRMS

8. RECEIVE REPORT ON SURVEY OF RESERVE POLICIES (INFORMATIONAL 
ITEM)

9. CONSIDER FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

10. ADJOURNMENT

2



MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE 

OF OLIVENHAIN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

November 2, 2023 
 

A regular meeting of the Finance Committee of Olivenhain Municipal Water District was 

held on Thursday, November 2nd, 2023, at the District office, 1966 Olivenhain Road, Encinitas, 

California via teleconference and in person.  

Director Meyers called the meeting to order at 1:01pm. In attendance were Neal Meyers, 

Board Treasurer; Lawrence A. Watt, Board Secretary; Kimberly Thorner, General Manager; Rainy 

Selamat, Finance Manager; Leo Mendez, Accounting Supervisor; Jared Graffam, Financial Analyst 

II; and Georgeanna Clark, Financial Analyst I. Also in attendance were Kenneth Pun and Coley 

Delaney from The Pun Group, LLP regarding agenda item 6. 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. ROLL CALL (BOARD MEMBERS) 
 
3. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

 
Director Watt moved to adopt the agenda, seconded by Director Meyers, and carried 
unanimously. 

 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
There were no public comments. 

 
5. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE AUGUST 8,2023 REGULAR FINANCE 

COMMITTEE MEETING 
 
Director Watt moved to approve the August 8, 2023, meeting minutes, seconded by 
Director Meyers and carried unanimously. 

 
6. REVIEW AND DISCUSS FISCAL YEAR 2022-23 AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND 

SINGLE AUDIT 
 
Finance Manager Selamat introduced Kenneth Pun and Coley Delaney from The Pun 
Group (the District’s audit firm). Mr. Pun provided an overview of the audit process and 
discussed the District’s audited financial statements with the committee. Mr. Pun stated 
that there were no material findings during the audit and his team did not encounter 

3



any difficulties in performing their audit. He also stated that the District received a clean 
audit and no material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal controls were 
noted.  
 
Mr. Pun reported that Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) No. 96 – 
Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements went into effect during the 
fiscal year under audit and had a minor effect on the District’s financials as of June 30, 
2023, and that the prior year financials were restated to include GASB 96 adjustments 
for comparative purposes. Mr. Pun stated GASB 96 was created to increase the 
usefulness of governments’ financial statements by requiring recognition of certain 
Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements liabilities that previously 
were not recognized.  
 
Mr. Delaney then presented an overview of the District’s audited financial statements 
and other pertinent information, such as key financial indicators and pension 
information. Key financial indicators that were presented included a comparison with 
the average of ten local districts, and Mr. Delaney added that the District performs 
better than its peers across the presented financial indicators. Mr. Delaney noted the 
most significant variances from the prior year financials were due to an increase in the 
pension-related deferred outflows and net pension liability, and a decrease in pension-
related deferred inflows which fluctuate from year-to-year based on California Public 
Employees Retirement System (CalPERS) actuarial assumptions. Mr. Delaney also noted 
a significant decrease in water sales and purchased water costs compared to the prior 
year due to lower-than-average water demand caused by wet weather conditions 
during the year. 
 
Director Meyers inquired about the operating loss shown in both fiscal year 2023 and 
2022. Finance Manager Selamat explained that the operating losses were mainly caused 
by the depreciation expenses, which is a non-cash item. General Manager Thorner 
added that the District has not operated at a true loss since fiscal year 2006. Director 
Watt asked what the District did in 2006 to cover the operating loss. General Manager 
Thorner responded that funds from operating reserves were used to cover the deficit.  
 
Director Meyers asked why the District had a larger change in net position in fiscal year 
2023 compared to 2022. Finance Manager Selamat explained that it was mainly due to 
contributed assets from grant revenue. Accounting Supervisor Mendez provided more 
information on the different grant revenues the District recognized in fiscal year 2023, 
and added that the significant increase in interest income on the District’s investments 
in 2023 compared to 2022 also contributed to the positive change in net position. 
 
Director Watt thanked and congratulated staff for consistent clean audits each year. 
Director Meyers agreed and moved to approve the presented financial statements and 
annual comprehensive financial report. Director Watt seconded the approval. 

 

4



 
7.      REVIEW STAFF’S REPORT ON DISTRICT PENSION PLANS FUNDING STATUS WITH CALPERS 

AND DISCUSS STAFF’S RECOMMENDED PENSION FUNDING PLANS FOR 2023 
 
Finance Manager Selamat presented the District’s pension funding status to the 
committee based on the most recent actuarial report available from CalPERS. Finance 
Manager Selamat reported the District’s pension funding status as of June 30, 2022 (the 
most current available) was lower compared to fiscal year 2021 due to CalPERS’ 
negative investment returns.  Finance Manager Selamat then reported that for fiscal 
year 2023, CalPERS earned positive returns on its investment (5.8%) due to changes in 
market conditions, which will likely result in an increase to the District’s pension funding 
status as of June 30, 2023.         
 
Finance Manager Selamat also presented staff’s recommended pension funding plan for 
2023 which include: (1) making a $311,000 Additional Discretionary Payment (ADP) 
before December 31, 2023, and (2) transferring $500,000 to the Water Pension 
Stabilization Fund and $50,000 to the Wastewater Pension Stabilization Fund from the  
Water and Wastewater Operating Funds, respectively. Director Meyers inquired on how 
annual transfer to Pension Stabilization Fund was determined. Finance Manager 
Selamat explained that the $500,000 annual transfer was included in the District’s Long 
Range Financial Plan and is budgeted based on the 13-year Fresh Start program included 
in the pension funding policy approved by the Board in December 2022 to reduce the 
District’s Unfunded Accrued Liability (UAL) and interest savings. Finance Manager 
Selamat added that the annual discretionary payments will be paid from the Pension 
Stabilization Fund and that the payments require Board approval and will bring the 
District closer to its minimum target funded ration of 85% as outlined in the District’s 
pension funding policy.  
 
The committee thanked staff for the presentation and recommended bringing this item 
before the full Board for consideration. 

 
 
8. QUARTERLY REVIEW OF INVESTMENTS AND CASH REPORT (3rd QTR 2023) 

 
Finance Manager Selamat reviewed the investment report as of September 30, 2023, 
with the committee. Cash and investments were discussed. Finance Manager Selamat 
reported that the current yield on District investment portfolio has increased since the 
last quarterly update due to replacing matured securities with higher yields. 
 
Finance Manager Selamat reported that District investments are in compliance with the 
District’s Investment policy and that the District has sufficient funds to meet its financial 
obligations for the next 6 months. 
 
Director Meyers asked how our fund balances compare to other districts. General 

5



Manager Thorner explained that adequacy of each district’s fund balances will vary 
depending on each district’s financial condition.  One of the key financial ratios 
presented earlier in the meeting, current assets compared to current liabilities, is a good 
indicator for determining how easily a district can meet its current debt obligations 
utilizing current assets on hand. Director Meyers requested staff provide more 
information on other districts’ fund balance policies for comparison. Staff agreed to look 
further into his request and provide more information at the next meeting. Director 
Watt added that JPIA provided input on the District’s reserves policy in the past which 
we was used to increase the reserve requirements. 

 
9. ANNUAL REVIEW OF INVESTMENT AND BOARD DESIGNATED FUND BALANCES 

(RESERVES) POLICIES AND PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE POLICY FOR 2024 
 
Finance Manager Selamat reported that Richard Babbe, Senior Managing Consultant at 
PFM Asset Management (PFM), reviewed the District’s annual investment policy and 
recommended certain updates which include: deleting the net asset value requirement 
in the policy to provide more flexibility for other types of investments, such as CAMP 
Term; deleting duplicative language throughout the policy; and updating the rating 
requirements throughout the policy to reference Nationally Recognized Statistical 
Rating Organization (NRSRO) rather than specific agencies (Moody’s, S&P, or Fitch) 
which is more in line with the California Government Code. Finance Manager Selamat 
also reported that the District’s investment policy was reviewed by California Municipal 
Treasurer’s Association (CMTA) as part of their investment policy review program, and 
the recommended updates from CMTA were included as proposed changes for the 
committee’s consideration.  

 
Director Meyers inquired if there would be any financial impact from the proposed 
changes to the investment policy. General Manager Thorner replied that there would 
not be any financial impact. Finance Manager Selamat added that there would be no 
changes to the District’s Board Designated Fund Balance (Reserves) policy.  
  
The proposed changes to the Investment policy were approved by the committee to be 
presented to the full board. 

 

 
10. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS/INFORMATION 

 
There were no future agenda items requested. 

 
11. ADJOURNMENT 

 
The meeting was adjourned at 2:20pm. 

6



   

 Memo 
Date: February 7, 2024 

To: Finance Committee  

From: Rainy Selamat, Finance Manager 

Via: Kimberly Thorner, General Manager 

Subject: REVIEW OF 2024 WASTEWATER RATE STUDY WITH RAFTELIS FINANCIAL 
CONSULTANTS 

Staff and the District’s rate consultant, Mr. Sudhir Pardiwala with Raftelis, will be 
available at the meeting to present the attached for consideration and discussion. 

Following Committee review and approval, this discussion will be brought forward for 
review with the full Board at the February 21st meeting.  

Attachment: OMWD Wastewater Rate Study Workshop Presentation 

Agenda Item 6 

7



1

Olivenhain Municipal 
Water District

Wastewater Rate Study Workshop
February 7, 2024

8



Agenda

2

1. Study Objectives

2. Overview of Rate Study

3. Background

4. Review Proposed 5-Year Financial Plan

5. Cost of Service Analysis

6. Proposed Rates and Customer Impacts

7. Questions & Discussion

9



Study Objectives

• Recover projected operating and capital costs in the next 5 years

• Finalize 5-year wastewater financial plan

• Proposed revenue adjustments

• Design wastewater rates to ensure customers pay in proportion to the service 
received

3

10



Rate Study at a Glance

4

Rate Setting 
Framework
• Financial goals 

and policies
• Pricing objectives

Financial Plan
• Evaluation of CIP 

and financing 
options

• Cash flow 
analysis for 
financial 
sufficiency

Cost of Service 
& Rate Design
• Cost allocations
• Rate design
̶ Rate 
calculations
̶ Customer 
impact analyses

Final Rate 
Adoption
• Report
• Prop 218 Notice
• Public Hearing

1 2 3 4

11



Background
• Raftelis conducted 

the previous rate 
study in 2021 and 
recommended 2% 
increase on July 21 
and 3% for the next 
four years

• Inflation comparison 
shows CPI is 7% 
higher than rates by 
2023

12



• Years 1-5 (additional details on next slide):
 Del Dios SPS- $4.7MM
 Headworks Screening System Improvements – $2.9MM
 Midpoint SPS - $2.2MM
 EV Charging Station – $1MM
 4S WRF Electrical Improvements - $1.1MM
 Digester Blower #2 - $300k

• Years 6-10:
 Firehouse, Santa Luz, & Cerro Del Sol SPS - $2.3MM 
 Neighborhood 3 SPS - $1.9MM
 Upgrade Odor Scrubber - $1.6MM
 Wastewater Master Plan Update - $500k

Major CIPs

13



Priority Projects (Years 1 & 2)/Consequence of Failure
• Del Dios Lift Station Liner

 Priority Issue Identified:
1. Liner failures in emergency storage basins and influent manholes

 Consequence of Failure
1. Exposure to corrosive conditions accelerates basin deterioration 
2. Can clog bypass pumps as material sloughs off, leading to operational failure

• Electrical Improvements
 Priority Issue Identified:

1. Approaching end of useful life
2. Electrical Improvements

a. Main Switchgear
b. Automatic Transfer Switch
c. Tertiary Filters Electrical (RW)
d. Area-Specific Conduits/Enclosures

3. Likelihood of failure escalated following recent conduit event
 Consequence of Failure:

1. Disruptions to plant power supply 
2. Safety
3. Significant resource impacts if fails
4. Potential treatment/regulatory violations

› Digester Blower #2
 Priority Issue Identified:

1. Approaching end of useful life
2. Likelihood of failure escalated following recent fire on other blower

 Consequence of Failure:
1. Safety
2. Poor digester performance
3. Potential treatment violations

14



• 2020 COSS (FY ‘21 – FY ‘30) - $20.5MM
• Biennial Budget (FY ‘23 – FY ’32) - $31.9MM

 Added Main Electrical Upgrades - $7MM
 Increase in NH1 SPS - $3MM
 Emergency Generator - $1.3MM
 Overall increase in supply costs and CPI

• 2024 COSS Proposed CIP (FY ‘25 – FY ‘34) – $26.8MM
 Basis on Dudek’s wastewater master plan update
 Includes ongoing multi-year projects
 Adjusted recurring replacement projects for aging plant and infrastructure
 Allocated a portion of costs to Recycled for certain CIPs serving tertiary
 Proposed CIP schedule reduced by $6.4 million from original by deferring 

future less-critical projects (see next slide for more details)

Increases in 10-Year CIP
15



• Less-Critical Projects Postponed to Years 11 & 12:
 Camino Sin Puente SPS #1 - #4 - $2MM

‒ Extended implementation schedule for SPS projects over 12 years
 Upgrade Plant B Aeration System - $1.8MM

‒ 4S WRF improvements and energy efficiency
 Connect Plant B Clarifier to Plant A Clarifier - $1.1MM

‒ 4S WRF treatment process improvement
 Emergency Generator Replacement - $900k

‒ Generator repair as part of electrical upgrades and will postpone replacement

Projects Postponed to Achieve 5.5% Rate Adjustment
16



Financial Plan

17



Financial 
Plan

11

EXPENSES
• O&M
• Budget & Inflation
• Capital
• (CIP & Debt)

REVENUE
• Operating
• Non-Operating
• Growth

FINANCIAL 
POLICIES

• Reserve Targets
• Debt Coverage

Revenue Adjustment Schedule
Multi-Year Long-Term Financial Plan

Financial Plan 
models yearly cash 
flow and reserve 
balances

18



Financial Plan Assumptions

• Cost escalation:
 Salaries: 6% per year FY 25-26, 4.5% per year FY 27-29
 Benefits:  5% per year FY 25-26, 4% per year FY 27-29
 Utilities:   5% per year
 Capital:  3% per year
 General: 3% per year FY 25-26, 2% per year FY 27-29
 Investment: 2% per year FY 25-27, 1.5% per year FY 28-29

• Account growth SFR: 0.2%, no growth for others
• Terms of future revenue bond debt:

 30-year term
 5% interest rate
 Issuance costs of 1.5% of total issue

• Water use/ WW Generation 5% over FY 23

19



Current Reserve Policies
• Operating Fund Target:
 Min: 180 days of annual O&M
 Max: 365 days of annual O&M

• Capital and Equipment Fund Target:
 Min: 2 year of average planned CIP over 10 years
 Max: 5 years of average planned CIP over 10 years

• Rate Stabilization Fund Target:
 Min: 25% of annual O&M
 Max: 100% of annual O&M

• Total Min target for FY 25 is $9.4 million
• Total Max target for FY 25 is $24 million
• Pension Stabilization Target Balance: Min:  $106,000 Max: $213,000

20



Proposed Financial Plan

Fiscal Year Month Revenue Adjustment Debt
FY 2025 July 5.5%
FY 2026 July 5.5% $6.5 M
FY 2027 July 5.5%
FY 2028 July 5.5%
FY 2029 July 5.5%

21



Proposed Revenue Adjustments, Coverage

22



Projected Funds Balance

23



Proposed Financial Plan

24



Capital Financing – Debt of $6.5M in FY 2026

25



Cost of Service 
Analysis

26



Wastewater Cost-of-Service Analysis Process

20

REVENUE 
REQUIREMENT

• O&M
• Debt Services
• Cash Funded CIP

FUNCTIONALIZATION

• Collection
• Treatment
• General & Admin

ALLOCATION

• Flow
• BOD
• TSS
• EDUs

DISTRIBUTION

• SFR
• MFR
• Commercial

› Low Strength
› High Strength

27



Cost of Service Methodology

• Kept consistent cost-of-service allocation methodology from 
2020 rate study update

• Updated operating and capital costs and asset values
• Retained current customer classifications

28



Cost of Service Allocations 

• Costs are functionalized
 Collection
 Treatment
 General

• Functional costs are allocated to
 Wastewater flow
 Biochemical oxygen demand
 Suspended solids
 Customer equivalent dwelling units (EDUs)

29



Customer Classes remain Unchanged

• Customers are divided into
 Single Family
 Multi-family
 Group I includes offices, retail stores, schools, etc.
 Group II  includes shopping centers, strip malls, medical offices, 

restaurants, manufacturing

30



Cost of Service Results

31



Proposed Rates

32



RATE STRUCTURE DESIGN

• Multi-family dwelling unit EDU remains at 0.79 
EDU based on multi-family wastewater flow

• Recover 27% of rate revenue on the fixed 
charges compared to current 26% 

26

33



Proposed FY 2025 Rates
Current July 2024

User Class

Annual System 
Access Charge 

(per EDU)
Commodity
 Rate ($/hcf)

Annual System 
Access Charge 

(per unit)
Commodity Rate 
($/hcf water) (1)

Residential 
SFR $197.52 $7.24 $217.59 $7.49
Non-Residential 
Multi-Family $156.31 $7.24 $172.19 $7.49
Group I $197.52 $7.24 $217.59 $7.49
Group II $197.52 $10.02 $217.59 $10.72

(1) Water use is lowest winter use for single family and 100% of monthly water use for all other 
customers.

34



Five Year Rates
July 2024 July 2025 July 2026 July 2027 July 2028

User Class

Annual System 
Access Charge 

(per unit)

Commodity 
Rate 

($/hcf)

Annual System 
Access Charge 

(per EDU)

Commodity 
Rate 

($/hcf)

Annual System 
Access Charge 

(per EDU)

Commodity 
Rate 

($/hcf)

Annual System 
Access Charge 

(per EDU)

Commodity 
Rate 

($/hcf)

Annual System 
Access Charge 

(per EDU)

Commodity 
Rate 

($/hcf)
Residential
SFR $217.59 $7.49 $229.56 $7.91 $242.19 $8.35 $255.52 $8.81 $269.58 $9.30 
Non-Residential
Multi-Family $172.19 $7.49 $181.67 $7.91 $191.67 $8.35 $202.22 $8.81 $213.35 $9.30 
Group I $217.59 $7.49 $229.56 $7.91 $242.19 $8.35 $255.52 $8.81 $269.58 $9.30 
Group II $217.59 $10.72 $229.56 $11.31 $242.19 $11.94 $255.52 $12.60 $269.58 $13.30 

35



Single Family Customer Impacts

36



Multi-Family Customer Impacts – 4 
Dwelling Units

37



Group I Customer Impacts

38



Group II Customer Impacts

39



Sewer Bill Comparison

40



Next Steps

• Present results to Board on Feb 21
• Issue Proposition 218 notices (March 2024)
• Conduct Proposition 218 hearing (May 2024)

41



Actions and Timeline

• Board’s consideration and approval on the Draft Wastewater 
Rate Study Report 

• If approved, the Report will be used by Staff to draft OMWD 
Prop 218 Wastewater (Sewer) Rate Hearing Notice

• DRAFT Notice will be brought to the Board for consideration at 
the March 20th Board meeting for mailing to OMWD’s sewer 
customers on March 25, 2024.

42



36 36

43



Contact: Sudhir Pardiwala  626 827 8931  spardiwala@raftelis.com
    John Wright        303 909 5575  Jwright@raftelis.com  
     Lindsay Roth        818 804 0454  Lroth@raftelis.com

37

Thank you!

44

mailto:spardiwala@raftelis.com
mailto:Jwright@raftelis.com
mailto:Lroth@raftelis.com


         
  
 

 

   Memo 
Date:  February 7, 2024 

To:  Finance Committee  

From:  Rainy Selamat, Finance Manager 

Via:  Kimberly Thorner, General Manager 

Subject: REVIEW OF DISTRICT INVESTMENTS AND CASH REPORT FOR THE FOURTH 
QUARTER OF 2023 (DECEMBER 2023) 

 

 
Purpose 

 
The purpose of this agenda is to provide a report on the District’s investment activities 
and cash information to the Finance Committee to comply with the annual investment 
policy approved by the Board.  
 
 

Recommendation 
 
It is recommended that the Committee review and receive the attached report as 
presented. The report provides documentation that the District has sufficient funds to 
meet its financial obligations for the next six months.  
 

 

Agenda Item 7 

45



Background 

The purpose of the District’s Investment Policy is to identify policies and procedures that 
shall govern the investment of all District funds. The ultimate goal of the policy is to 
enhance the economic position of the District while protecting its funds. These policies 
have been followed in making all investment decisions on behalf of the District. 

The Annual Investment Policy also states that at least once each quarter, the District’s 
Finance Manager shall provide an oral report on the District’s investments for review 
and discussion. 

Discussion 

All investments have been made in accordance with the District’s Annual Statement of 
Investment Policy.  A copy of District historic water and wastewater reserve fund 
balances is also provided and attached for review.  

Staff will be available for discussion with the Committee during the meeting. 

Attachments:  

Attachment 1 - DRAFT Monthly Cash and Investment Summary Report as of December 
31, 2023 
Attachment 2 - Graphs showing 5-year history of reserve balances by fund  

46



Active Deposits Book Value

Checking Accounts 4,703,609$       
Cash Restricted for Specific Use 2,652,882         
Petty Cash/Disaster Preparedness 1,496 

     Total Active Deposits 7,357,987$       

Deposits Not Covered by Investment Policy

Cash with Fiscal Agents 1,899,025         

Face Market Current
Investments Value Value Yield

LAIF 5,517,150$     5,441,608 3.93% 5,517,150$       
CAMP - US Bank 24,102,189     24,102,189 5.55% 24,102,189       
Money Market Funds 5,145,418       5,145,418       4.88% 5,145,418         
Municipal Bonds 1,000,000       1,008,300 4.96% 1,216,760         
U.S. Treasury Securities 17,550,000     17,348,781 4.91% 17,336,864       
U.S. Agency Securities 31,725,000     30,029,087 0.91% 31,722,000       

    Total Investments 85,039,758$   83,075,383$   3.59% 85,040,381$     

Total - All Deposits/Investments 94,297,394$     

Percent Balance
Demand Deposits 40.9% 34,764,758$     
Maturity within the next two months 17.2% 14,633,233       
Maturity within three months and one year 13.4% 11,415,947       
Maturity beyond one year 28.5% 24,226,444       

     Total Investments 100.0% 85,040,381$     

Weighted Average Days to Maturity 246 

Other Required Disclosures:
293,588$        

The above investments are in accordance with the portfolio limitations in the Investment Policy 

The District has sufficient funds on hand to meet the next 60 days' obligations.

Maturity Analysis of Investments

Accrued interest receivable as of 12/31/2023

   approved by the Board in December 2023.

\\hq-fs-01\Departments\Finance\Bank & Investment files\Investment Reports\Investment Report FY 2023-2024\Investment Report Q4

Attachment 1

Olivenhain Municipal Water District 
MONTHLY CASH AND INVESTMENT SUMMARY

As of December 31, 2023

47



Olivenhain Municipal Water District

December 31, 2023

Book Permitted In
Value Percent Percent Compliance?

LAIF 5,517,150$     6.5% 50.0% (1) Yes

Investment Pools: CAMP - US Bank 24,102,189     28.3% 30.0% Yes

Money Market Funds 5,145,418       6.1% 20.0% (2) Yes

Municipal Bonds 1,216,760       1.4% 30.0% Yes

U.S. Treasury Securities 17,336,864     20.4% 100.0% (3) Yes

U.S. Agency Securities 31,722,000     37.3% 50.0% Yes

FHLB Federal Home Loan Bank 28,472,000           33.5%

FNMA Fannie Mae 2,250,000             2.6%

FHLMC Freddie Mac 1,000,000             1.2%

Total Investments 85,040,381$   100%

Note:
(1) No more than 50% of the total value of all District Investments or $40 million.
(2) May not exceed 5% in any money market fund.
(3) No limit.

  

* Total may not add up to 100% due to rounding.

PORTFOLIO LIMITATIONS ANALYSIS PER INVESTMENT POLICY

LAIF
6.5%

Investment 
Pools: CAMP - US 

Bank
28.3%Money 

Market Funds
6.1%

Municipal Bonds
1.4%

U.S. Treasury Securities
20.4%

FHLB
33.5%

FNMA
2.6%

FHLMC
1.2%Other

3.8%

TOTAL INVESTMENTS

\\hq-fs-01\Departments\Finance\Bank & Investment files\Investment Reports\Investment Report FY 2023-2024\Investment Report Q4

48



Olivenhain Municipal Water District
MONTHLY INVESTMENTS DETAIL

December 31, 2023

ACTIVE DEPOSIT

Checking A/C: California Bank and Trust for General Purpose 4,703,609                  

California Bank and Trust for Specific Purpose 429,243                     

CAMP 2021A Bond 2,223,639                  

Petty Cash/Disaster Preparedness 1,496                         

Total - Active Deposits 7,357,987               

DEPOSITS NOT COVERED BY INVESTMENT POLICY

Cash with Fiscal Agents:

Union Bank - RAD 96-1 Refunding Bond 262,847                     
Union Bank - 2015A Refunding Bond 12,094                       
SRF Loan 1,610,715                  
Union Bank - 2016A Refunding Bond 8,298                         
Union Bank - 2021A WW Revenue Bond 1,655                         
Union Bank - 2021B Refunding Bond   3,416                         

Total Deposits Not Covered by Investment Policy 1,899,025               

RATING DATE
Weighted 
Average 
Days to Stated Current

Description Moody's S&P Purchase Maturity Next Call Next S-U Maturity Call Coupon Yield Market Value Face Value  Book Value 

INVESTMENTS

Invest. Pools: US Bank Calif. Asset Mgmt Prgm (CAMP) Demand 1              5.55% 5.55% 24,102,189$     24,102,189$     24,102,189$              
State Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) Demand 1              3.93% 3.93% 5,441,608         5,517,150         5,517,150                  
First American Government 31846V567 Demand 1              5.26% 5.26% 1,158,504         1,158,504         1,158,504                  
CB&T Money Market Account Demand 1              4.77% 4.77% 3,986,914         3,986,914         3,986,914                  

U.S. Treasury Notes/Bills
912797FW2 U.S. Treasury Bills Aaa - 09/26/23 01/04/24 5              5.39% 5.39% 1,199,652         1,200,000         1,183,150                  
912797GC5 U.S. Treasury Bills Aaa - 07/14/23 01/11/24 12            5.35% 5.36% 1,997,380         2,000,000         1,959,149                  
912797GC5 U.S. Treasury Bills Aaa - 10/12/23 01/11/24 12            5.41% 5.41% 1,498,035         1,500,000         1,469,362                  
912796ZY8 U.S. Treasury Bills Aaa - 10/26/23 01/25/24 26            5.40% 5.41% 996,630            1,000,000         986,728                     
912797JD0 U.S. Treasury Bills Aaa - 11/09/23 02/13/24 45            5.37% 5.40% 993,840            1,000,000         986,110                     
912797JE8 U.S. Treasury Bills Aaa - 11/16/23 02/20/24 52            5.34% 5.38% 1,191,396         1,200,000         1,183,424                  
912797GP6 U.S. Treasury Bills Aaa - 11/30/23 02/29/24 61            5.34% 5.38% 2,627,528         2,650,000         2,615,310                  
912797GX9 U.S. Treasury Bills Aaa - 12/14/23 03/14/24 75            5.32% 5.37% 1,979,240         2,000,000         1,974,464                  
912797JJ7 U.S. Treasury Bills Aaa - 11/29/23 03/19/24 80            5.34% 5.40% 988,880            1,000,000         984,070                     
912797LL9 U.S. Treasury Bills Aaa - 12/21/24 03/21/24 82            5.31% 5.37% 1,977,220         2,000,000         1,973,934                  
91282CBQ3 U.S. Treasury Notes Aaa - 03/09/21 09/30/24 275          0.50% 0.54% 924,100            1,000,000         984,478                     
912828YH7 U.S. Treasury Notes Aaa - 03/09/21 02/28/26 791          1.50% 1.54% 974,880            1,000,000         1,036,684                  

57            4.85% 4.91% 17,348,781$     17,550,000$     17,336,864$              

U.S. Agency Securities
3135GAEU1 FNMA Callable Aaa AA+ 02/13/23 02/09/24 41            5.13% 5.13% 999,630            1,000,000         1,000,000                  
3130ARYU9 FHLB Callable Aaa AA+ 05/23/22 02/23/24 02/23/24 55            55        3.00% 3.01% 996,590            1,000,000         1,000,000                  
3136G4P56 FNMA Callable Aaa AA+ 08/26/20 02/26/24 02/26/24 58            58        0.40% 0.40% 1,240,750         1,250,000         1,250,000                  
3130AL6Q2 FHLB Callable Aaa AA+ 02/26/21 02/26/24 Anytime 58            1          0.22% 0.22% 991,730            1,000,000         1,000,000                  
3130AMMV1 FHLB Callable Aaa AA+ 06/03/21 06/03/24 03/03/24 156          64        0.40% 0.41% 489,910            500,000            500,000                     
3130ALHM9 FHLB Callable Aaa AA+ 03/10/21 06/10/24 03/10/24 163          71        0.30% 0.31% 978,540            1,000,000         999,000                     
3130ANTP5 FHLB Callable Aaa AA+ 09/16/21 09/16/24 03/16/24 261          77        0.50% 0.52% 968,670            1,000,000         1,000,000                  
3130ANSP6 FHLB Callable Aaa AA+ 09/17/21 10/17/24 03/17/24 292          78        0.50% 0.52% 965,000            1,000,000         1,000,000                  
3130AKEW2 FHLB Callable Aaa AA+ 11/04/20 11/04/24 Anytime 310          1          0.43% 0.45% 1,924,980         2,000,000         2,000,000                  
3130ANGN4 FHLB Step-up Callable Aaa AA+ 08/18/21 02/18/25 02/18/24 02/18/24 416          50        0.75% 0.78% 965,650            1,000,000         1,000,000                  
3130AMKE1 FHLB Callable Aaa AA+ 05/27/21 02/27/25 02/27/24 425          59        0.66% 0.69% 958,980            1,000,000         1,000,000                  
3134GWAQ9 FHLMC Callable Aaa AA+ 07/28/20 07/28/25 07/28/24 576          211      0.65% 0.69% 943,390            1,000,000         1,000,000                  
3130AKGX8 FHLB Step-up Callable Aaa AA+ 12/15/20 12/15/25 03/15/24 06/15/24 716          76        0.75% 0.79% 1,888,700         2,000,000         2,000,000                  
3130AKMD5 FHLB Callable Aaa AA+ 01/26/21 01/26/26 01/26/24 758          27        0.50% 0.54% 924,680            1,000,000         999,500                     
3130AKU53 FHLB Callable Aaa AA+ 01/28/21 01/28/26 01/28/24 760          29        0.52% 0.56% 924,870            1,000,000         1,000,000                  
3130AKN69 FHLB Callable Aaa AA+ 01/28/21 01/28/26 01/28/24 760          29        0.50% 0.54% 924,480            1,000,000         1,000,000                  
3130AKVN3 FHLB Callable Aaa AA+ 01/29/21 01/29/26 01/29/24 761          30        0.52% 0.56% 924,780            1,000,000         1,000,000                  
3130AKWK8 FHLB Callable Aaa AA+ 02/12/21 02/12/26 02/12/24 775          44        0.51% 0.55% 922,880            1,000,000         1,000,000                  
3130AKX43 FHLB Step-up Callable Aaa AA+ 02/24/21 02/24/26 02/24/24 None 787          56        0.70% 0.76% 1,850,360         2,000,000         2,000,000                  
3130AL7M0 FHLB Callable Aaa AA+ 02/24/21 02/24/26 02/24/24 787          56        0.63% 0.68% 924,040            1,000,000         1,000,000                  
3130AKYR1 FHLB Callable Aaa AA+ 02/25/21 02/25/26 02/25/24 788          57        0.55% 0.60% 922,430            1,000,000         1,000,000                  
3130AL6K5 FHLB Callable Aaa AA+ 02/25/21 02/25/26 02/25/24 788          57        0.58% 0.63% 923,040            1,000,000         1,000,000                  
3130ALD76 FHLB Callable Aaa AA+ 02/25/21 02/25/26 02/25/24 788          57        0.70% 0.76% 925,470            1,000,000         1,000,000                  
3130ALCW2 FHLB Callable Aaa AA+ 02/25/21 02/25/26 02/25/24 788          57        0.63% 0.68% 923,950            1,000,000         998,500                     
3130ALGJ7 FHLB Callable Aaa AA+ 03/23/21 03/23/26 01/23/24 814          24        1.00% 1.08% 905,697            975,000            975,000                     
3130ALPQ1 FHLB Step-up Callable Aaa AA+ 03/30/21 03/30/26 03/30/24 03/30/24 821          91        1.00% 1.06% 942,280            1,000,000         1,000,000                  
3130ALVC5 FHLB Step-up Callable Aaa AA+ 04/14/21 04/14/26 01/14/24 04/14/24 836          15        1.00% 1.06% 940,700            1,000,000         1,000,000                  
3130APAY1 FHLB Callable Aaa AA+ 10/21/21 10/21/26 01/21/24 1,026       22        1.10% 1.20% 915,120            1,000,000         1,000,000                  
3130APL78 FHLB Callable Aaa AA+ 10/28/21 10/28/26 01/28/24 1,033       29        1.38% 1.49% 921,790            1,000,000         1,000,000                  

578          52        0.86% 0.91% 30,029,087$     31,725,000$     31,722,000$              

Medium Term Notes

-           -       #DIV/0! 0.00% -$                 -$                  -$                          
Municipal Bonds
882724RA7 TEXAS ST PUB FIN AUTH Aaa AAA 10/30/20 10/01/25 641          5.00% 4.96% 1,008,300         1,000,000         1,216,760                  

25            5.00% 4.96% 1,008,300$       1,000,000$       1,216,760$                

Total Investments 246          3.50% 3.59% 83,075,383$     85,039,758$     85,040,381$              

TOTAL - ALL DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

 Book Value 

94,297,394$                                       

\\hq-fs-01\Departments\Finance\Bank & Investment files\Investment Reports\Investment Report FY 2023-2024\Investment Report Q4

49



Olivenhain Municipal Water District
INVESTMENTS TRANSACTION

December 31, 2023

PURCHASED

DATE Stated Current

Purchase Maturity Call Step-Up Investment Description Coupon Yield Face Value  Book Value 

10/04/23 01/04/24 U.S. Treasury Bills 5.391% 5.442% 500,000       493,311        
10/12/23 01/11/24 U.S. Treasury Bills 5.407% 5.464% 1,500,000    1,469,362     
10/26/23 01/25/24 U.S. Treasury Bills 5.395% 5.463% 1,000,000    986,728        
11/09/23 02/13/24 U.S. Treasury Bills 5.370% 5.429% 1,000,000    986,110        
11/16/23 02/20/24 U.S. Treasury Bills 5.340% 5.404% 1,200,000    1,183,424     
11/29/23 03/19/24 U.S. Treasury Bills 5.338% 5.424% 1,000,000    984,070        
11/30/23 02/01/24 U.S. Treasury Bills 5.335% 5.406% 2,650,000    2,615,310     
12/14/23 03/14/24 U.S. Treasury Bills 5.318% 5.374% 2,000,000    1,974,464     
12/21/24 03/21/24 U.S. Treasury Bills 5.311% 5.372% 2,000,000    1,973,934     

MATURED / REDEEMED / CALLED

DATE Stated Current

Redemption Maturity Call Step-Up Investment Description Coupon Yield Face Value  Book Value 

10/01/23 10/01/23 Medium Term Note 2.300% 2.300% 500,000       497,940        
10/12/23 10/12/23 U.S. Treasury Bills 5.338% 5.346% 1,500,000    1,480,568     
10/26/23 10/26/23 U.S. Treasury Bills 5.386% 5.405% 1,000,000    986,786        
11/09/23 11/09/23 U.S. Treasury Bills 5.356% 5.362% 1,000,000    982,743        
11/16/23 11/16/23 U.S. Treasury Bills 5.379% 5.391% 1,000,000    986,804        
11/24/23 11/24/23 U.S. Treasury Bills 5.399% 5.417% 1,100,000    1,085,428     
11/24/23 11/24/23 11/24/23 FHLB Callable 2.500% 2.505% 550,000       550,000        
11/30/23 11/30/23 U.S. Treasury Bills 5.399% 5.422% 2,000,000    1,973,438     
12/14/23 12/14/23 U.S. Treasury Bills 5.401% 5.411% 1,000,000    986,748        
12/18/23 12/18/23 FHLB Discount Note 4.765% 4.777% 1,000,000    957,913        
12/21/23 12/21/23 U.S. Treasury Bills 5.393% 5.409% 2,000,000    1,973,535     
12/29/23 03/29/28 12/29/23 FHLB Callable 6.000% 6.023% 1,000,000    1,000,000     

\\hq-fs-01\Departments\Finance\Bank & Investment files\Investment Reports\Investment Report FY 2023-2024\Investment Report Q4

50



Olivenhain Municipal Water District

UNAUDITED CASH POSITION BY FUNDING SOURCES

As of December 31, 2023

Water Funds (Potable & Recycled) Balance

10050-100 Cash - Petty Cash Fund 1,496              

10010-100 Cash - Operating Fund 17,668,853     

10030-100 Cash - Capital and Equipment Fund 37,624,557     

10040-100 Cash - Rate Stabilization Fund 11,750,479     

10080-100 Cash - Pension Stabilization Fund 668,850          

10060-100 Cash - Deposit Work for Other 157,134          

14000-500 Restricted Cash - Capacity Fee Fund 6,414,669       

Total Water Funds (Potable & Recycled) 74,286,038     

Wastewater Funds

10010-110 Wastewater - Operating Fund 3,245,201       

10030-110 Wastewater - Capital Replacement Fund 9,442,805       

10040-110 Wastewater - Rate Stabilization Fund 2,711,170       

10080-110 Cash - Pension Stabilization Fund 60,272            

Total Wastewater Funds 15,459,448     

Non Fiscal Agent Debt Service Cash

14020-570 Cash non-agent - RAD 96-1 418,043          

10070-561 Cash non-agent - Bond 2015A 621                 

10070-581 Cash non-agent - Bond 2016A 10,580            
14020-521 Cash non-agent - Bond 2021A 2,223,639       
14020-522 Cash non-agent - Bond 2021B -                      

Total Non Fiscal Agent Debt Service Cash 2,652,882       

Debt Service Funds

14030-510 SRF Loan - Fiscal Agent 1,610,715       

14105-570 Redemption fund - RAD 96-1 214,197          

14110-570 Reserve fund - RAD 96-1 48,649            

14100-561 Redemption fund - Bond 2015A 12,094            

14100-581 Redemption fund - Bond 2016A 8,298              

14100-521 Redemption fund - Bond 2021A 1,655              
14100-522 Redemption fund - Bond 2021B 3,416              

Total Debt Service Funds 1,899,025       

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 94,297,394     

\\hq-fs-01\Departments\Finance\Bank & Investment files\Investment Reports\Investment Report FY 2023-2024\Investment Report Q4

51



5 Year History of OMWD Fund Balances by Quarter 

 -

 20,000,000

 40,000,000

 60,000,000

 80,000,000

 100,000,000

 120,000,000

Water - All Funds

Operating Fund - Water (Potable & Recycled) Capital Improvement Fund - Water

Pension Stabilization Fund - Water Rate Stabilization Fund - Water

Rate Reimbursment Credit Min Balance All Funds

Max Balance All Funds

 -

 5,000,000

 10,000,000

 15,000,000

 20,000,000

 25,000,000

 30,000,000

Wastewater - All Funds

Operating Fund - Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund - Wastewater

Pension Stabilization Fund - Wastewater Rate Stabilization Fund - Wastewater

Min Balance All Funds Max Balance All Funds

 -

 2,000,000

 4,000,000

 6,000,000

 8,000,000

 10,000,000

 12,000,000

 14,000,000

 16,000,000

Water - RSF

Rate Stabilization Fund - Water Rate Reimbursment Credit Min Balance RSF Max Balance RSF

 -

 500,000

 1,000,000

 1,500,000

 2,000,000

 2,500,000

 3,000,000

 3,500,000

 4,000,000

 4,500,000

Wastewater - RSF

Rate Stabilization Fund - Wastewater Min Balance RSF Max Balance RSF

Attachment 2 52



5 Year History of OMWD Fund Balances by Quarter 

 -

 2,000,000

 4,000,000

 6,000,000

 8,000,000

 10,000,000

 12,000,000

 14,000,000

 16,000,000

 18,000,000

Wastewater - CIP Fund

Capital Improvement Fund - Wastewater Min Balance Capital Max Balance Capital

 -

 10,000,000

 20,000,000

 30,000,000

 40,000,000

 50,000,000

 60,000,000

 70,000,000

 80,000,000

 90,000,000

Water - CIP Fund

Capital Improvement Fund - Water Min Balance Capital Max Balance Capital

 -

 500,000

 1,000,000

 1,500,000

 2,000,000

 2,500,000

 3,000,000

 3,500,000

 4,000,000

 4,500,000

 5,000,000

Wastewater - Operating Fund

Operating Fund - Wastewater Min Balance Operating Max Balance Operating

 -

 5,000,000

 10,000,000

 15,000,000

 20,000,000

 25,000,000

Water - Operating Fund

Operating Fund - Water (Potable & Recycled) Min Balance Operating Max Balance Operating

53



   

 Memo 
Date: 

To: 

From: 

Via: 

Subject: 

February 7, 2024 

Finance Committee  

Rainy Selamat, Finance Manager 

Kimberly Thorner, General Manager 

UPDATE LIST OF OMWD APPROVED INVESTMENT BROKERAGE FIRMS 

The purpose of this item is to update the list of approved investment brokerage firms.  

Mutual Securities, which is currently listed as one of the approved investment broker 
firms, can no longer provide broker services for OMWD.  Not updating the existing list 
will leave staff with one less approved investment brokerage firm for getting quotes 
when buying securities for OMWD.  

A copy of MBS Due Diligence packet is attached for review by the Committee. Staff will 
be available for discussion at the meeting. 

Attachment: MBS Due Diligence Packet 

Agenda Item 7a 

54



Contents  1

 2

Audited Financials  3

Compliance  4

Pershing  5  
 
 
 

Multi-Bank 
Securities, Inc. 

Please send all correspondence to Corporate Headquarters:
Multi-Bank Securities, Inc.

1000 Town Center, Suite 2300  •  Southfield, MI  48075  •  www.mbssecurities.com

Proudly Veteran-Owned!
The information provided in the following pages has been prepared to meet or exceed your regulatory requirements. 

Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered. MBS 2023 DD Muni eCD E.pdf 04.07.23

2023 Municipal Due Diligence

6eConnectDirect®

RENE MOLINA

RMOLINA@MBSSECURITIES.COM

SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT, FIXED INCOME

PHONE: +1 (800) 967-9011

55

https://mbssecurities.com/
https://mbssecurities.com/


This page is intentionally left blank.

56



2023 Due Diligence Packet 3

Address

Phone

Fax

1000 Town Center, Suite 2300
Southfield, Michigan  48075
(800) 967-9045
(248) 291-1100
(248) 291-1101

www.mbssecurities.com

2400 East Commercial Boulevard, Suite 1000
Fort Lauderdale, Florida  33308
(800) 967-9045
(954) 351-6930
(954) 351-9197

    Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

   Proudly Veteran-Owned!

Dear Valued Customers and Prospective Clients,

Thank you for your interest in Multi-Bank Securities, Inc. (MBS). We understand you have numerous options 
for your investment needs, and we appreciate you taking the time to learn more about our Firm. 

Our goal is to deliver quality services and sound financial solutions to our customers by dedicating our 
resources exclusively to the fixed-income sector. We hope you will find that this document addresses everything 
you need to complete your due diligence on our Firm. We have included information on both MBS and our 
clearing firm: Pershing LLC (Pershing), a BNY Mellon company.

Here are a few ways our customers experience the MBS difference:

Stability: MBS is a privately held, fixed-income securities broker-dealer with a 35-year history of serving 
institutional investors. We work with thousands of institutions nationwide and have several offices across 
the country to serve your needs.

Veteran Status: We are a veteran-owned firm and are certified as a Service-Disabled Veteran-Owned 
Business (SDVOB) by the National Veteran Business Development Council (NVBDC).

Investment Products: MBS specializes in a broad selection of fixed-income investment products and 
services, including an array of U.S. Treasuries, agencies and certificates of deposit (CDs). We traded $204 
billion in principal amount for our clients in 2022.

Underwriting: MBS is proud to be an approved underwriter of agency debt for Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, 
Farmer Mac, the Federal Home Loan Banks and the Federal Farm Credit Banks. MBS is also an active 
underwriter of CDs, corporate bonds, municipal bonds and mortgage-backed securities.

Proprietary Technology: MBS offers a proprietary online investment platform, eConnectDirect®. This tool 
allows users to easily compare thousands of investment options across a variety of asset classes and submit 
order requests online.

Value-Added Services: We offer an array of value-added services to our clients, including portfolio 
analytics and third-party safekeeping through Pershing.

We also encourage you to learn more about our Firm’s FINRA broker-dealer status at www.finra.org – our CRD 
number is 22098.

Please do not hesitate to reach out to me or your account representative if you have any questions or require 
additional information. You can contact me directly at 1-800-967-9055 or davemac@mbssecurities.com.

Sincerely,

David T. Maccagnone
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 
Multi-Bank Securities, Inc.

57

http://www.mbssecurities.com
http://www.finra.org
mailto:davemac%40mbssecurities.com?subject=
http://www.mbssecurities.com


This page is intentionally left blank.

58



2023 Due Diligence Packet 5                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

 1

Multi-Bank Securities, Inc. (MBS) is committed to providing you with the highest quality service available. 
We hope this packet will meet or exceed your due diligence needs and expectations.

MBS has clients in all 50 U.S. states and territories. References are available upon request.

THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION IS PROVIDED TO SUPPORT YOUR DUE DILIGENCE REQUIREMENTS:

MULTI-BANK SECURITIES, INC. ........................................................................................................... 7-16

National Veteran Business Development Council Certification .............................................................7

New York State Service-Disabled Veteran-Owned Business Certification ..............................................8

Disabled Veteran Business Enterprise Certification ...............................................................................9

A Copy of the Multi-Bank Securities, Inc. Registration Statement ........................................................11

Agreement That Specifies the Type of Securities Your Institution Purchases .........................................13

Investment Policy Recommendations and Guidelines .........................................................................14 

Account Representative Biography .....................................................................................................15

AUDITED FINANCIALS ...................................................................................................................... 17-28

Statement of Compliance With SEC Annual Report Filing Requirements .............................................17

Recently Audited Financial Statement ................................................................................................19

Independent Auditor’s Report .............................................................................................................20

Statement of Financial Condition .......................................................................................................21

Notes to Statement of Financial Condition .........................................................................................22

COMPLIANCE .................................................................................................................................... 29-42

Compliance Information ....................................................................................................................29

Privacy Policy .....................................................................................................................................31

Business Continuity ............................................................................................................................33

Statement Regarding SEC, FINRA or State Securities Sanctions ...........................................................34

BrokerCheck Response .......................................................................................................................35

Code of Ethical Business Conduct ......................................................................................................36

AML and CIP: Test Procedures and Internal Audit ...............................................................................37

IT Security ..........................................................................................................................................39

Confirmation of Insurance ..................................................................................................................40

Evidence of SIPC Protection ...............................................................................................................41

PERSHING ......................................................................................................................................... 43-76

Pershing Statement of Financial Condition .........................................................................................43

Protection of Client Assets ..................................................................................................................71

BNY Mellon Insurance Coverage .......................................................................................................75

ECONNECTDIRECT® .......................................................................................................................... 77-78

eConnectDirect Investor Benefits .......................................................................................................77

59

http://www.mbssecurities.com


This page is intentionally left blank.

60



2023 Due Diligence Packet 7                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

2

61



2023 Due Diligence Packet 8                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

62

https://ogs.ny.gov/veterans


2023 Due Diligence Packet 9                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

SOUTH CENTRAL TEXAS REGIONAL CERTIFICATION AGENCY 
 

Your unified certification source 
www.sctrca.org

 
March 9, 2022  
 
 
David Maccagnone 
Multi-Bank Securities, Inc. 
1000 Town Center, Suite 2300 
Southfield, MI 48075 
 
Dear David Maccagnone: 
 
We are pleased to inform you that your application for certification in our Small, Minority, Woman and Veteran Business
Enterprise (S/M/W/V) Program has been approved. Your firm met the requirements of the SCTRCA Policy and Procedure
Manual and is currently certified as a: 
 
**DDIIBBEE  VVBBEE 
 
Certification Number: 222222003311556677 
Certification Expiration: MMaarrcchh  3311,,  22002244 
 
Providing the following products or services: 
NAICS 523: SECURITIES, COMMODITY CONTRACTS, AND OTHER FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS AND RELATED ACTIVITIES 
NAICS 5231: SECURITIES AND COMMODITY CONTRACTS INTERMEDIATION AND BROKERAGE 
NAICS 5239: OTHER FINANCIAL INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES 
 
On the two year anniversary date of your certification, you are required to provide a renewal application affirming that no
changes have occured affecting your certification status. The SCTRCA will send you a Certification Renewal reminder ssiixxttyy  ((6600))
ddaayyss prior to your expiration date. The SCTRCA will no longer include a certificate upon certification renewals. YYoouurr  eexxppiirraattiioonn
ddaattee  iiss  MMaarrcchh  3311,,  22002244.. 
 
Please notify this office within tthhiirrttyy  ((3300))  ddaayyss of any changes affecting the size, ownership, control requirements, or any
material change in the information provided in the submission of the certification application. Thank you in advance. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
Charles Johnson, 
Executive Director

63

http://www.sctrca.org


2023 Due Diligence Packet 10                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

64

http://sctrca.org


2023 Due Diligence Packet 11                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

Jurisdiction/SRO Category Status Status As Of Date
AK Broker Dealer Approved 03/27/1997
AL Broker Dealer Approved 11/07/1994
AR Broker Dealer Approved 05/02/1997
AZ Broker Dealer Approved 10/11/2001
CA Broker Dealer Approved 03/30/1994
CO Broker Dealer Approved 04/23/1991
CT Broker Dealer Approved 08/20/1998
DC Broker Dealer Approved 03/30/1994
DE Broker Dealer Approved 10/11/1994
FINRA Broker Dealer Approved 12/23/1988
FL Broker Dealer Approved 02/05/1991
GA Broker Dealer Approved 02/28/1994
HI Broker Dealer Approved 04/05/1995
IA Broker Dealer Approved 03/31/1994
ID Broker Dealer Approved 03/20/1997
IL Broker Dealer Approved 07/13/1989
IN Broker Dealer Approved 03/24/1997
KS Broker Dealer Approved 05/04/1994
KY Broker Dealer Approved 03/08/1994
LA Broker Dealer Approved 09/07/1994
MA Broker Dealer Approved 07/25/1994
MD Broker Dealer Approved 03/11/1994
ME Broker Dealer Approved 05/24/1994
MI Broker Dealer Approved 08/31/1988
MN Broker Dealer Approved 09/02/1994
MO Broker Dealer Approved 05/02/2002
MS Broker Dealer Approved 03/04/1994
MT Broker Dealer Approved 02/14/1994
NC Broker Dealer Approved 08/02/1994
ND Broker Dealer Approved 04/25/1997
NE Broker Dealer Approved 11/02/1994

Data Current as of: 
Wednesday, March 1, 2023 

CRD#: 22098
Regulatory, State & Territory Registrations

65

http://www.mbssecurities.com


2023 Due Diligence Packet 12                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

Jurisdiction/SRO Category Status Status As Of Date
NH Broker Dealer Approved 09/28/1995
NJ Broker Dealer Approved 11/09/1994
NM Broker Dealer Approved 08/02/1994
NV Broker Dealer Approved 05/23/1994
NY Broker Dealer Approved 06/05/1996
OH Broker Dealer Approved 11/21/1994
OK Broker Dealer Approved 06/04/1991
OR Broker Dealer Approved 04/04/1997
PA Broker Dealer Approved 03/07/1994
PR Broker Dealer Approved 02/10/2000
RI Broker Dealer Approved 03/02/1994
SC Broker Dealer Approved 08/04/1994
SD Broker Dealer Approved 03/04/1994
SEC Broker Dealer Approved 05/06/1988
TN Broker Dealer Approved 08/04/1994
TX Broker Dealer Approved 06/29/1990
UT Broker Dealer Approved 01/19/1994
VA Broker Dealer Approved 05/16/1994
VI Broker Dealer Approved 01/30/2012
VT Broker Dealer Approved 06/18/1997
WA Broker Dealer Approved 10/04/1989
WI Broker Dealer Approved 09/06/1991
WV Broker Dealer Approved 01/28/1994
WY Broker Dealer Approved 08/08/1994

DATA CURRENT AS OF: Wednesday, March 1, 2023 (Continued) 
CRD#: 22098
Regulatory, State & Territory Registrations

66

http://www.mbssecurities.com


2023 Due Diligence Packet 13

Address

Phone

Fax

1000 Town Center, Suite 2300
Southfield, Michigan  48075
(800) 967-9045
(248) 291-1100
(248) 291-1101

www.mbssecurities.com

2400 East Commercial Boulevard, Suite 1000
Fort Lauderdale, Florida  33308
(800) 967-9045
(954) 351-6930
(954) 351-9197

    Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

   Proudly Veteran-Owned!

March 1, 2023

To Whom It May Concern:

This letter is to inform you that we at Multi-Bank Securities, Inc. (MBS) do not give accounting, regulatory, 
tax or legal advice. However, MBS makes every effort to recommend investments we feel are appropriate for 
our clients. It is our intention to maintain on file an investment policy from every one of our clients.  

If you have a written investment policy outlining the types of investments you can and cannot make, please 
forward it to us at your convenience. We have designed a system of controls to help reduce the risk of 
inappropriate investments for our clients.

Sincerely,

David T. Maccagnone
Chief Executive Officer
Multi-Bank Securities, Inc.

67

http://www.mbssecurities.com
http://www.mbssecurities.com


2023 Due Diligence Packet 14                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

Municipal Investing Policy

*There may be fees associated with other products/services offered by MBS.
For institutional investors only, not intended for the investing public. © 2020 Multi-Bank Securities, Inc.
Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered. All Rights Reserved. Municipal Investing Policy.pdf 01.10.20

Proudly Veteran-Owned!

(800) 967-9045    sales@mbssecurities.com    www.mbssecurities.com

Recommendations and Guidelines

Your Investment Policy

Since 1988, Multi-Bank Securities, Inc. (MBS) has been serving the investment needs of municipalities 
throughout the U.S. It is with great care that we recommend investment products we feel are 
appropriate and strictly adhere to your investment policy guidelines. We have systems in place to 
assist you in reducing the risk of making inappropriate investments.

Maintenance of Your Investment Policy

It is our policy to review and maintain a copy of your investment policy on file. Should your policy need 
reviewing, your MBS account representative is ready to help. Our team of highly skilled professionals  
is required to regularly complete continuing education to ensure a broad understanding of how fixed-
income products impact the municipal market. They are well-versed in current regional, state and 
federal governmental investment statutes and policies.

Developing Your Investment Policy
Information about developing and evaluating an investment policy is available on the Multi-Bank 
Securities Institute website. This online resource focuses on educating and supporting investment 
professionals of all experience and skill levels. There is no cost associated with the website,  
but visitors will have to register to view the Public Funds Investor Guide.* Explore the site at  
https://institute.mbssecurities.com.

National municipal organizations such as the Association of Public Treasurers of the United States & 
Canada (APT) and the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) also make sample investment 
policy guidelines and recommendations available to governmental entities. To receive a free copy, 
please contact your MBS account representative.

68

https://institute.mbssecurities.com
mailto:sales@mbssecurities.com
http://www.mbssecurities.com


Address

Phone

Fax

1000 Town Center, Suite 2300
Southfield, Michigan  48075
(800) 967-9045
(248) 291-1100
(248) 291-1101

www.mbssecurities.com

2400 East Commercial Boulevard, Suite 1000
Fort Lauderdale, Florida  33308
(800) 967-9045
(954) 351-6930
(954) 351-9197

    Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

   Proudly Veteran-Owned!

Rene Molina
Senior Vice President, Fixed Income 
CRD# 1322709
(800) 967-9011 direct
rmolina@mbssecurities.com

Rene Molina joined Multi-Bank Securities, Inc. as a senior vice president in 2023, exclusively servicing 
institutional clients who trade in U.S. Treasuries, agencies, mortgage-backed securities and corporate debt. 

Rene strives to put his clients first, and is frequently at his desk from 5 a.m. to 5 p.m. PT to help clients on 
both coasts. His 39 years of sales experience enable him to deliver attentive service and thorough 
communication to his clients. Rene primarily works with large institutional clients’ investment portfolios, 
helping his clients implement their investment strategies with suitable products that adhere to their 
investment policies.

Rene graduated from the University of Southern California (USC) with a bachelor’s degree in finance and 
business economics. He began his career as an institutional bond trader after graduating in 1984.
Rene currently holds the following FINRA licenses: a General Securities Registered Representative (Series 7), 
a General Securities Principal (Series 24), a Municipal Advisor Representative (Series 50) and a Uniform 
Securities Agent State Law Representative (Series 63).

Rene has been married for 39 years to his wife Norma. They have three children, Raquel, Adam and 
Christian; and two granddaughters, 12-year-old Layla and 7-year-old Kamryn.

69



This page is intentionally left blank.

70



2023 Due Diligence Packet 17                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

  

3

71



2023 Due Diligence Packet 18                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

72



2023 Due Diligence Packet 19                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

73



2023 Due Diligence Packet 20                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

74



2023 Due Diligence Packet 21                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

75



2023 Due Diligence Packet 22                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

76



2023 Due Diligence Packet 23                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

77



2023 Due Diligence Packet 24                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

78



2023 Due Diligence Packet 25                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

79



2023 Due Diligence Packet 26                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

80



2023 Due Diligence Packet 27                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

81



This page is intentionally left blank.

82



2023 Due Diligence Packet 29                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

Important Compliance Information

USA PATRIOT Act / Anti-Money Laundering / Bank Secrecy Act / CIP Rule / Know 
Your Customer
Multi-Bank Securities, Inc. is committed to complying with the U.S. statutory and regulatory requirements 
designed to combat money laundering and terrorist financing. The USA PATRIOT Act requires all financial 
institutions to obtain certain identification documents or other information in order to comply with their 
Customer Identification Procedures (CIP).

When you open an account, we will ask you for your name, address and other information that will allow us to 
satisfy our Know Your Customer requirements. We also may ask to see your driver’s license or other identifying 
documents. Until you provide the required information or documents, we may not be able to open an account 
or effect any transactions for you. For additional information, contact Chief Compliance Officer Merlin Elsner, 
our designated Anti-Money Laundering Compliance Officer, at 1-800-967-9008.

The Customer Due Diligence Rule (CDD Rule) from FinCEN, effective May 11, 2018, requires that certain 
financial institutions are now obligated to disclose the ultimate beneficiary of the company upon new account 
opening. We will ask that you provide documentation on each individual that owns 25 percent of the equity 
interests in your institution, or any individual with significant responsibility to control, manage or direct your 
institution. We will ask for personal information on the CEO, CFO, COO, managing members, general partners, 
presidents, vice presidents, treasurers, et al. We will seek to retain sufficient information on any individual 
who regularly performs functions that demonstrate “control.” Under the definition provided by FinCEN, we 
will seek information on beneficial owners using Appendix A to CFR 1010.230 (Beneficial Owner Certification 
Form).

Order Routing
Order routing information for your specific orders is available upon request by contacting your account 
representative. You can also see the most recent quarterly routing information on our corporate website,  
www.mbssecurities.com, by clicking on Order Routing at the bottom of the home page.

FINRA BrokerCheck Information
The FINRA BrokerCheck program is available at  www.finra.org and can be accessed by clicking on BrokerCheck 
at the top of the home page. The site gives background information, registration/license status and disciplinary 
history of brokers and firms.

Securities Investor Protection Corporation (SIPC)
Information about SIPC, including the SIPC brochure, can be obtained by calling SIPC at 1-202-371-8300 or 
visiting the SIPC website at www.sipc.org. 

4

83

http://www.mbssecurities.com
https://www.mbssecurities.com
http://www.finra.org
http://www.sipc.org


2023 Due Diligence Packet 30                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

Important Compliance Information (Continued)

Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (MSRB) Rule G-10 – Investor Education 
and Protection
Multi-Bank Securities, Inc. is registered with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission and the Municipal 
Securities Rulemaking Board.

The website address for the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board is www.msrb.org.

A brochure is posted on the website of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. In addition to having 
investor education materials available, there are also descriptions of the protections provided by MSRB rules 
and how to file a complaint with FINRA’s Investor Complaint Center.

Firm Contact Information
If you have any concerns about your account, please contact Merlin Elsner at 1-800-967-9008.

Updated March 2023

84

http://www.mbssecurities.com
http://www.msrb.org


2023 Due Diligence Packet 31                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

Privacy Policy

Multi-Bank Securities, Inc. (MBS) respects your right to privacy. We are committed to securing the confidentiality 
and integrity of your personal information. We are proud of our privacy practices and want our current and 
prospective clients to understand what information we collect and how we use it.

Why We Collect Your Information
We gather your information about you and your accounts so we can (1) know who you are and thereby prevent 
unauthorized access to your information, (2) design and improve the products and services we offer, and (3) 
comply with the laws and regulations that govern the financial industry.

What Information We Collect
We may collect the following types of nonpublic personal information about you:

• Information about your identity, such as your name, address and Taxpayer Identification Number.

• Information about your transactions with us.

• Information we receive from you from applications, forms or direct discussions with you.

Sources From Which We Obtain Your Information
We collect nonpublic personal information about MBS’s clients from the following sources:

• Information we receive from you from applications, forms or direct discussions with you.

• Information we may obtain via the internet.

• Information we receive from our clearing firm or any third-party vendor for authentication purposes.

What Information We Disclose
Your securities account is carried by our clearing firm pursuant to clearing agreements. We may disclose 
to them all the information we collect regarding your account. Our clearing firm is contractually obligated 
to keep the information we have provided them confidential and use the information only for the services 
required and as allowed by applicable law or regulation.

We also may disclose some nonpublic personal information about our customers or former customers to 
facilitate servicing your account or to our regulators upon proper request, except as permitted by law and 
noted above. Moreover, we will not release information about our customers or former customers, except as 
noted above, unless one of the following conditions is met:

• We receive your prior written consent.

• We believe the recipient to be you or your authorized representative.

• We are required by law or regulation to release information to the recipient.

85

http://www.mbssecurities.com


2023 Due Diligence Packet 32                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

Privacy Policy (Continued)

Confidentiality and Security
We maintain physical, electronic and procedural safeguards to protect your personal account information. 
We also restrict access to your personal and financial data to authorized associates who have a need for these 
records. We require all non-affiliated organizations to conform to our privacy standards and are contractually 
obligated to keep the provided information confidential and used only as requested. Furthermore, we will 
continue to adhere to the privacy policies and practices described in this notice even after your account is 
closed or becomes inactive.

California Consumer Privacy Act (CCPA)
If you are a California resident, you may have the right to (1) request access to certain personal information* we 
have collected about you, or (2) request that we delete certain personal information* we may have collected 
from you. To exercise any of these rights, please visit www.mbssecurities.com and click the CCPA link in the 
website footer.

The examples contained within the Privacy Policy are illustrations and are not intended to be exclusive. If there 
are material changes to this policy, they will be posted on our website at www.mbssecurities.com.

Updated March 2023

*Personal information request exceptions: The CCPA does not apply to personal information that may not be provided or deleted based 
on other laws, rules or regulations.

86

http://www.mbssecurities.com
http://www.mbssecurities.com
http://www.mbssecurities.com


2023 Due Diligence Packet 33                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

Business Continuity Statement

In the event of a disruption of service, if you cannot contact us as you usually do through your account 
representative or your branch office, call our alternative number, 1-800-967-5094, or visit our website at  
www.mbssecurities.com. If you cannot access us through either of these means, contact our clearing firm, 
Pershing LLC (Pershing), a BNY Mellon company, directly in one of the following ways:

1. Call 1-201-413-3635. Pershing will process limited trade-related transactions (option No. 1), cash  
 disbursements (option No. 2) and security transfers (option No. 3) on your behalf.

2. Via facsimile at 1-201-413-5368.

3. Via postal service at Pershing LLC, P.O. Box 2065, Jersey City, NJ  07303-2065.

Our Business Continuity Plan
We plan to quickly recover and resume business operations after a significant business disruption and respond 
by safeguarding our employees and property, making a financial and operational assessment, protecting the 
Firm’s books and records, and allowing our customers to transact business. In short, our business continuity 
plan is designed to permit our Firm to resume operations as quickly as possible, given the scope and severity 
of the significant business disruption. Our business continuity plan addresses the following: data backup and 
recovery; all mission critical systems; financial and operational assessments; alternative communications with 
customers, employees and regulators; alternate physical location of employees; critical suppliers, contractors, 
banks and counter-party impact; regulatory reporting; and assuring our customers’ prompt access to their funds 
and securities if we are unable to continue our business. Our clearing firm, Pershing, backs up our important 
records in a geographically separate area. While every emergency situation poses unique problems based on 
external factors, such as time of day and the severity of the disruption, we have been advised by our clearing 
firm that its objective is to quickly restore its own operations and be able to complete existing transactions 
and accept new transactions and payments. Your orders and requests for funds and securities could be delayed 
during the restoration period.

Varying Disruptions
Significant business disruptions can vary in their scope, including the business district, the city or the entire 
region where one or more of our offices are located. Within each of these areas, the severity of the disruption 
can also vary from minimal to severe. In the event of a disruption to one or more of our offices, we will 
transfer our operations to an appropriate location when needed and expect to recover and resume full business 
operations. In the event of a disruption affecting a larger area, we will transfer our operations to a location 
outside of the affected area when needed and expect to recover and resume full business operations in a timely 
manner. In either situation, we plan to continue normal business operations, transferring functionality to other 
offices within our Firm or to our clearing firm if necessary. We will notify our customers in the most prudent 
and expeditious method. If a significant business disruption is so severe that it prevents us from remaining in 
business, we will work with our clearing firm to assure our customers receive prompt access to their funds and 
securities.   

If you have questions about our business continuity planning, you can contact us at  
businesscontinuity@mbssecurities.com.

Corporate Headquarters
1000 Town Center, Suite 2300, Southfield, MI 48075
1-800-967-9045 phone
1-248-291-1101 fax
Updated March 2023

87

http://www.mbssecurities.com
http://www.mbssecurities.com
mailto:businesscontinuity%40mbssecurities.com?subject=


2023 Due Diligence Packet 34

Address

Phone

Fax

1000 Town Center, Suite 2300
Southfield, Michigan  48075
(800) 967-9045
(248) 291-1100
(248) 291-1101

www.mbssecurities.com

2400 East Commercial Boulevard, Suite 1000
Fort Lauderdale, Florida  33308
(800) 967-9045
(954) 351-6930
(954) 351-9197

    Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

   Proudly Veteran-Owned!

March 1, 2023

To Whom It May Concern,

This letter is to inform you that as of the date of this letter, (1) there are no current regulatory sanctions 
outstanding against Multi-Bank Securities, Inc. (MBS) nor any of its account representatives or officers, and (2) 
MBS has never had a regulatory customer complaint.*

Additionally, MBS confirms we have an Anti-Money Laundering (AML) Program in place with policies and 
procedures that are reasonably designed to detect and prevent the use of our facilities and services for illegal 
purposes, including the laundering of monies, the financing of terrorist activities and the proliferation of 
weapons of mass destruction. This AML Program includes the designation of an AML officer, an ongoing AML 
employee training program and an annual independent audit to test the effectiveness of the AML Program. The 
Program is approved by the Board of Directors on an annual basis.

We further attest that we are in compliance:

1. With the Bank Secrecy Act (BSA), as amended by the USA PATRIOT Act, including, without limitation,  
 a system of internal controls for detection and prevention of money laundering and illegal activity,  
 independent testing of the company’s BSA program, designation of a qualified individual for  
 coordinating and monitoring day-to-day compliance, and training programs for all employees, officers  
 and directors as appropriate.

2. With regulations and requirements of the Office of Foreign Assets Control (OFAC), including, without  
 limitation, screening in OFAC-prohibited parties databases of all individuals involved in transactions  
 by, through or with your institution, screening of OFAC embargoed country regulations for prevention of  
 transactions involving countries subject to U.S. trade and economic sanctions, comparison of  
 transactions on a daily basis, identification procedures and document retention.

3. With the Customer Identification Program requirements of the BSA, as amended by the USA PATRIOT  
 Act, including, without limitation, risk-based procedures to verify customer identity, a risk assessment  
 of our customer base and products, and due diligence for correspondent accounts

4. With “Know Your Customer” and monitoring requirements as necessary to ensure effective detection  
 of suspicious transactions and procedures for the filing of Suspicious Activity Reports (SARs) and  
 Currency Transactions Reports (CTRs).

Sincerely, 

Merlin Elsner
Chief Compliance Officer
Multi-Bank Securities, Inc. 
 
*Based on information available through our regulators and/or supplied to us by our clearing firm.

88

http://www.mbssecurities.com
http://www.mbssecurities.com


2023 Due Diligence Packet 35

Address

Phone

Fax

1000 Town Center, Suite 2300
Southfield, Michigan  48075
(800) 967-9045
(248) 291-1100
(248) 291-1101

www.mbssecurities.com

2400 East Commercial Boulevard, Suite 1000
Fort Lauderdale, Florida  33308
(800) 967-9045
(954) 351-6930
(954) 351-9197

    Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

   Proudly Veteran-Owned!

 Dear Multi-Bank Securities, Inc. Client, 

Thank you for performing your due diligence on Multi-Bank Securities, Inc. (MBS). We understand that this is a 
crucial part of building a trusting relationship with your broker, and we are more than happy to provide a response 
concerning your finding(s).  

There are four items on our BrokerCheck report we would like to further explain.  

The first incident was initiated by the State of Alabama on June 16, 1994. The incident occurred when MBS submitted 
a broker-dealer application to the State and incorrectly filled out the paperwork in the process. MBS paid a small 
fine, and Alabama vacated the denial order following the paperwork corrections.  

The second incident was initiated by the Vermont Securities Division on June 12, 1997. MBS was cited for transacting 
business as an unregistered broker-dealer in Vermont. We paid a small fine, became registered in the State of 
Vermont and conduct business there today. 

In the third incident, as the result of a sweep, FINRA found that our Firm failed to accurately report to TRACE certain 
inter-dealer transactions in a timely manner.  

The citation states,  

“Without admitting or denying the findings, the firm consented to the sanctions and to the entry of findings that 
it failed to report the correct time of trade execution for transactions in Trade Reporting and Compliance Engine 
(TRACE)-eligible securitized products within 15 minutes of the time of execution to TRACE; and failed to show the 
correct time of execution on the memorandum of brokerage orders.” 

MBS paid a small fine without admitting or denying the facts as presented, and will continue to do business in the 
market of fixed-income securities. To prevent future events like this, we made changes to our supervisory policies 
and procedures to reduce redundant supervisory reviews. We reviewed and continue to review our inter-dealer 
relationships to ensure that trade times are reported, and to ensure that both parties contractually understand and 
agree to each transaction prior to creating a TRACE reporting obligation. 

Finally, as a result of our 2014 and 2016 regular cycle examinations, FINRA took the position that during a specific 
period of time, on a specific form, there was language that could be potentially confusing to some municipal entities 
with respect to the capacity in which the Firm would be acting relative to the Municipal Advisor Rule. Additionally, 
FINRA took the position that the Firm’s Risk Management Controls outside of the Written Supervisory Procedures 
caused the Written Supervisory Procedures to be inadequate, and that the Firm needed to make specific reference 
to a particular rule during the annual CEO certification of compliance systems and controls.

We are proud of our customer compliance record and will continue to provide you the best in customer service. 
We thank you again for the opportunity to provide you with additional details. Should you have any questions or 
concerns, I can be reached directly at 1-800-967-9008, or by email at melsner@mbssecurities.com. 

Sincerely, 

Merlin Elsner
Chief Compliance Officer
Multi-Bank Securities, Inc.

89

http://www.mbssecurities.com
mailto:melsner%40mbssecurities.com?subject=
http://www.mbssecurities.com


2023 Due Diligence Packet 36                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

Code of Ethical Business Conduct

Mission Statement
Multi-Bank Securities, Inc. is a fixed-income securities Firm focused on delivering value to the institutional 
markets. We seek to earn and preserve the respect, confidence and loyalty of our employees and customers 
through integrity, professionalism, investment expertise, progressive technology and exceptional personal 
service.

Code of Ethical Business Conduct
Our Code of Ethical Business Conduct outlines our principles, ethics and standards to help guide our employees. 
Every person at our Firm is valuable and fulfills a vital role. Each client’s objective can be successfully met 
when all departments work harmoniously with that singular goal in mind. The following are in addition to the 
rules required by FINRA and other regulatory authorities.

Commitment: We have made a commitment to operate ethically and to lead with integrity. We are 
committed to maintain the trust of fellow employees, clients, business partners and other industry 
professionals. This commitment is embedded in our core values.

Integrity: Is the sum of the collective actions of our employees and how those actions measure up every 
day to our fundamental values. We are obligated to demonstrate moral and sound judgment in all actions 
within the office environment and the public. Our reputation is a direct reflection of our culture.

Respect: We support an environment that encourages respect. We do not make false or misleading 
statements about our customers, business partners or competitors, nor do we misrepresent facts in order 
to gain a competitive advantage or engage in illegal or unethical business practices.

Professional Growth: Our representatives are instructed to familiarize themselves with all policies, laws 
and regulations that apply to their jobs – including but not limited to state statues, bylaws and investment 
policies – prior to conducting business. We support our representatives’ pursuit of professional licenses 
and certifications.

Accurate Records: It is critical that we properly maintain records and uphold state statutes, bylaws and 
investment policies at the corporate level, as well as in personal files for each customer. These documents 
will be updated accordingly or as required by law.

Employee Manual: The Employee Manual is provided to assist employees in being successful at their 
job. The manual outlines our expectations, employment practices and policies, including the Code of 
Conduct. It is the responsibility of every employee to be familiar with and understand the contents of the 
manual. A verification receipt is required to be executed by each employee. We should all work to create 
a positive and diverse workplace that is free from discrimination and harassment. We are committed to a 
zero-tolerance policy against harassment or threatening behavior of any kind.

Travel: We strongly encourage building trust and rapport with customers and business partners. 
Representatives are supported and make every effort to attend board meetings and council/commissioner 
meetings, including state conferences and chapter meetings, locally and nationally.

90

http://www.mbssecurities.com


2023 Due Diligence Packet 37                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

Multi-Bank Securities, Inc. 
Anti-Money Laundering Policy Test Procedures

Executive Summary
Multi-Bank Securities, Inc. (MBS) has in place an Anti-Money Laundering (AML) policy. Merlin Elsner is our 
Chief Compliance Officer. Senior management has approved the AML policy as written, and all questions are 
to be directed to Merlin Elsner. The company’s AML policy is available for review upon request.  

Merlin Elsner is responsible for ensuring the review of all new accounts and routine transactional surveillance. 
Additionally, the company’s clearing agent Pershing LLC (Pershing), a BNY Mellon company, also reviews each 
account entity and transaction. Many MBS accounts (credit unions, banks, municipalities and SEC-registered 
investment advisors) are exempt from full Customer Identification Procedures (CIP). MBS relies on the fact that 
each of these exempted institutional entities is independently audited to ensure AML program compliance. 
Whenever practical and/or available, MBS will review external AML policies and independent audit reports 
made available for compliance with appropriate rules and regulations.

MBS engaged the company controller to perform the annual AML independent testing. The company controller 
operates fully independent of the Compliance Department and reports directly to the CEO. During the annual 
independent testing of our AML procedures, randomly selected accounts were checked against the Office of 
Foreign Asset Control (OFAC) list found at www.ustreas.gov/ofac. The controller verified that as of the most 
recent test (concluded Dec. 12, 2022), none of the randomly selected accounts were found on the OFAC list. 
The company controller, upon a review of the processed documentation of account opening files and ongoing 
review of transactions, found no material deficiencies for 2022. 

Day-to-Day Operations
Merlin Elsner, or his designee, is responsible for making sure that new accounts have appropriate and sufficient 
information, including but not limited to names, addresses and Taxpayer Identification Numbers requested 
at the time of account opening. Operations will reject all accounts with improperly filled-out forms or forms 
missing material information. Pershing systems do not allow for customer accounts to be opened without 
proper identification information.  

Pershing is responsible for verifying new control lists against all existing accounts. They have assured us that 
they do this task regularly. MBS screens all accounts on a continuous basis through a third-party vendor 
established as best industry practice. 

Merlin Elsner, or his designee, is responsible for deposit and withdrawal review. He follows the AML policy 
instructions for verifying information and record-keeping. Reviews are performed in a timely manner 
utilizing in-house CRM reports as well as Pershing system reports to capture all information necessary for 
AML review. MBS does not accept money or securities from clients at any time. MBS account activity is 
reviewed systematically against a complex series of dynamic logical rules to screen for potential AML activity 
through the Pershing platform. This platform produces behavior-based reports, which are reviewed in addition 
to internal CRM reports. CRM reports are reviewed on a daily basis by executive management. This two-
pronged approach ensures that MBS has in place an adequate policy to guard against and detect potential AML 
activity. Given the sophistication of MBS’s internal client account AML policies, MBS considers the risk of an 
actual AML incident to be extremely low. The risk rating of accounts at MBS is presented in a spectrum to be 
considered in the overall securities market, and while there may be differences in ratings within the Firm, the 
overall AML risk remains low when considering the overall market. 

91

http://www.mbssecurities.com
http://www.ustreas.gov/ofac


2023 Due Diligence Packet 38                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

Merlin Elsner is also responsible for ensuring the review of the biweekly Financial Crimes Enforcement Network 
(FinCEN) report and compares them to the MBS customer database in a timely fashion. Evidence of these report 
reviews is kept extremely confidential and is available for review upon request from FINRA and/or the SEC. 
MBS screens new accounts (banks, credit unions and municipalities are exempt) against the OFAC database. 
Pershing screens accounts and transaction beneficiaries against the report for all clearing transactions. MBS 
performs OFAC screening on an “ongoing” basis in addition to the initial account opening procedures.  

Merlin Elsner is responsible for AML training of new and existing employees. The company also holds employee 
meetings to cover sales practice and compliance issues. The company maintains attendance records and 
has the record book available for review as necessary. Employees must complete Firm Element continuing 
education training as well as the FINRA-required continuing education. Merlin Elsner coordinates compliance 
training for all MBS locations.  

The company has procedures in place to maintain files for at least six years. The company maintains 
documentation for two years on-site. The company also has an off-site storage facility to maintain previous 
years. The company controller personally verifies the packaging and storage of all relevant documents. The off-
site storage facility is subject to an inspection by MBS and all associated files are stored in a safe and secure 
location with extremely limited access.  

Merlin Elsner is responsible for the Suspicious Activity Report (SAR). He is familiar with the SAR form and Bank 
Secrecy Act (BSA) e-filing procedures. He will file a SAR immediately as applicable. The company does not 
accept money from clients and therefore does not maintain a Currency Transaction Report (CTR). All customer 
checks must be payable to Pershing LLC and all money wires go directly to Pershing. Pershing will not accept 
funds that originate from outside of the U.S.; this includes, but is not limited to, checks and electronic transfers. 

Please contact me at 1-800-967-9008 with any questions related to this AML document. 

Merlin Elsner
Chief Compliance Officer
Multi-Bank Securities, Inc.

Multi-Bank Securities, Inc. 
Anti-Money Laundering Policy Test Procedures (Continued)

92

http://www.mbssecurities.com


2023 Due Diligence Packet 39

Address

Phone

Fax

1000 Town Center, Suite 2300
Southfield, Michigan  48075
(800) 967-9045
(248) 291-1100
(248) 291-1101

www.mbssecurities.com

2400 East Commercial Boulevard, Suite 1000
Fort Lauderdale, Florida  33308
(800) 967-9045
(954) 351-6930
(954) 351-9197

    Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

   Proudly Veteran-Owned!

Information Security Attestation Letter

March 15, 2023

In February 2023, Multi-Bank Securities, Inc. (MBS) contracted a Qualified Security Assessor Company to 
perform an External Penetration Test on MBS’s internet-facing systems. The objective of this engagement was to 
identify vulnerabilities in MBS systems and network security that both internal and external adversaries could 
exploit.  

The security engagement occurred during the period from February 1 to February 3, 2023. The testing process 
began with an information gathering phase in which the vendor’s assessment team conducted steps designed to 
gather all pertinent information surrounding targeted environment. Automated and manual testing techniques 
were used to assess the target areas to gauge the level of business risk of any discovered vulnerabilities.     

It was the vendor’s overall opinion that MBS had taken the appropriate steps to reduce enterprise risk level and 
mitigate the probability of such an event. 

Based on the assessment, MBS has implemented sufficient security controls to ensure the continued operation 
of business processes. The existing security controls appear to adequately mitigate risks to business processes 
to ensure the collection of personally identifiable information and critical business data. 

As of this date, the chief information security officer attests that no material changes or events, as they relate 
to this external vendor, have occurred. 

Moving forward, MBS will continue diligent efforts on improving its overall security posture.

Should you have any questions regarding this matter, please feel free to contact me directly at 1-800-967-9008 
or via email at melsner@mbssecurities.com.

Sincerely, 

Merlin Elsner
Chief Compliance Officer
Multi-Bank Securities, Inc.

93

http://www.mbssecurities.com
mailto:melsner%40mbssecurities.com?subject=
http://www.mbssecurities.com


2023 Due Diligence Packet 40                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

CONFIRMATION OF INSURANCE 
NAMED INSURED BINDER DATE BINDER NO. 

Multi-Bank Securities, Inc. 
1000 Town Center Drive, Suite 2300 
Southfield, MI   48075 

09/16/2022 n/a 

CLIENT CODE POLICY TYPE 

MULTSEC-01 Securities 
Dealers Bond 

Page 1 of 1 ACCOUNT SERVICER 
Abigail Escalera 

EFFECTIVE 
DATE 

EXPIRATION 
DATE 

POLICY NUMBER INSURER 

11/01/2022 11/01/2023 81940548 Federal Insurance Company 

COVERAGE DESCRIPTION AND AMOUNTS/LIMITS 
Coverage: Securities Dealer Blanket Bond 

Effective Date of Change: 11/01/2022 
Description of Change: Renewal 

It is hereby understood and agreed that the renewal of coverage is bound effective 12:01 a.m. on November 1, 2022 for 
a one year period as follows: 

Limit of Liability:  
Deductible:  
One Year Premium: 

$2,000,000 per loss 
$20,000 per loss  

All other terms and conditions remain the same. 

This confirmation of insurance sets forth the general terms, conditions and subjectivities, if any, of placement effected 
by Alliant on your behalf and at your direction. This confirmation of insurance will be cancelled, superseded and 
replaced upon delivery of the insurer’s binder of coverage. The insurer’s binder will be in effect and control this 
placement until the receipt of the insurer’s formal policy/bond documentation. 

In addition to the fees and/or commissions received by Alliant  for the placement of insurance in certain circumstances 
other parties, including other intermediaries, may earn and retain usual and customary commissions for their role in 
providing insurance products or services under their separate contracts with insurers and/or reinsurers. Further, in 
certain segments of our business, come of our compensation may be derived from supplemental or bonus commissions 
paid by insurers or intermediaries based on criteria designed by the insurer or intermediary, to value of the policies that 
we place with it in a particular period. 

Premium: Federal Insurance Company 

Confirmed By: Authorized Representative: Program 
At Alliant  Refer To: 
Abigail Escalera Admitted:  X Non-Admitted 

32 Old Slip 
New York, NY 10005-
3504 
Phone 800-221-5830 
Fax 800-383-1852 

94



2023 Due Diligence Packet 41                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

 

SECURITIES INVESTOR PROTECTION CORPORATION 
1667 K Street NW Suite 1000 

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20006-2215 
(202) 371 – 8300   FAX (202) 223 – 1679 

WWW.SIPC.ORG 
 

Via E-mail (Melsner@mbssecurities.com) 
Merlin Elsner 
Chief Compliance Officer 
Multi-Bank Securities, Inc.   
1000 Town Center, Suite 2300 
Southfield, MI 48075 

March 16, 2023 
8-39547  

 

Dear Mr. Elsner: 
 
 In response to your request, please be advised that according to SIPC’s records,     Multi-
Bank Securities, Inc. is registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission as a securities 
broker or dealer under Section 15(b) of the 1934 Act, (8-39547, 05/06/1988).  By operation of 
the Securities Investor Protection Act of 1970, the corporation is a SIPC member unless (i) its 
principal business, in the determination of SIPC, taking into account business of affiliated 
entities, is conducted outside the United States and its territories and possessions; (ii) its business 
as a broker or dealer consists exclusively of (I) the distribution of shares of registered open end 
investment companies or unit investment trusts, (II) the sale of variable annuities, (III) the 
business of insurance, or (IV) the business of rendering investment advisory services to one or 
more registered investment companies or insurance company separate accounts, or (iii) it effects 
transactions in security futures products only. 
 
       Sincerely, 
 
 
 
       Christine R. King 
       Manager – Member Assessments   
      
   

 

   

Christine 
R. King

Digitally signed by 
Christine R. King 
Date: 2023.03.16 
13:10:16 -04'00'

95

http://www.sipc.org


This page is intentionally left blank.

96



2023 Due Diligence Packet 43                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

5

97



This page is intentionally left blank.

98



2023 Due Diligence Packet 45                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

99



2023 Due Diligence Packet 46                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

100



2023 Due Diligence Packet 47                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

101



2023 Due Diligence Packet 48                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

102



2023 Due Diligence Packet 49                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

103



2023 Due Diligence Packet 50                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

104



2023 Due Diligence Packet 51                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

105



2023 Due Diligence Packet 52                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

106



2023 Due Diligence Packet 53                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

107



2023 Due Diligence Packet 54                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

108



2023 Due Diligence Packet 55                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

109



2023 Due Diligence Packet 56                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

110



2023 Due Diligence Packet 57                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

111



2023 Due Diligence Packet 58                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

112



2023 Due Diligence Packet 59                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

113



2023 Due Diligence Packet 60                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

114



2023 Due Diligence Packet 61                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

115



2023 Due Diligence Packet 62                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

116



2023 Due Diligence Packet 63                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

117



2023 Due Diligence Packet 64                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

118



2023 Due Diligence Packet 65                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

119



This page is intentionally left blank.

120



2023 Due Diligence Packet 67                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

121



2023 Due Diligence Packet 68                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

122



2023 Due Diligence Packet 69                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

123



This page is intentionally left blank.

124



2023 Due Diligence Packet 71                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

125



2023 Due Diligence Packet 72                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

126



2023 Due Diligence Packet 73                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

127



2023 Due Diligence Packet 74                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

128



2023 Due Diligence Packet 75                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

129



2023 Due Diligence Packet 76                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.

130



2023 Due Diligence Packet 77                            Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered.
© 2021 Multi-Bank Securities, Inc. All Rights Reserved. eConnectDirect® is a registered trademark of Multi-Bank Securities, Inc. 

Member of FINRA & SIPC; MSRB Registered. eCD Investor Benefits Munis.pdf 09.20.21

(800) 967-9052    sales@eConnectDirect.com    www.eConnectDirect.com

Powered by

Multi-Bank Securities, Inc. is committed to helping municipalities achieve their investment goals with personal 
service, expertise and our proprietary online investment platform, eConnectDirect®.

This web-based tool lets treasurers and finance directors compare fixed-income offerings from hundreds of 
dealers at once, making it quick and easy to find the most suitable investment in the market. Users can select 
their own investments and submit order requests online, or work side-by-side with their dedicated account 
representative on investment decisions.

Investor Benefits
• Increased Market Transparency
• No Subscription Fees & Nothing to Download*
• CD Insurance Scrub & User-Defined Filters
• Free Safekeeping*
• Third-Party Bank Ratings
• Portfolio Analytics, Management Tools & Reports
• Online Access to Statements, Balances,  
 Confirms & More
• Easy Navigation Across Multiple Products

Asset Classes
• U.S. Agencies
• U.S. Treasuries
• Certificates of Deposit
• New-Issue and Secondary DTC Offerings
• Municipal Bonds
• Corporate Bonds

To learn more about how eConnectDirect can help you save time and enhance your return on investment, 
visit www.eConnectDirect.com/video-tour/.
*There may be fees associated with other products/services offered by Multi-Bank Securities, Inc.

See the fixed-income markets more clearly than ever.

6

131

http://www.eConnectDirect.com/video-tour/
mailto:sales@eConnectDirect.com
http://www.eConnectDirect.com


This page is intentionally left blank.

132



         
  
 

 

   Memo 
Date:  February 7, 2024 

To:  Finance Committee  

From:  Rainy Selamat, Finance Manager 

Via:  Kimberly Thorner, General Manager 

Subject: RECEIVE REPORT ON SURVEY OF RESERVE POLICIES (INFORMATIONAL ITEM) 

 
 

This is a follow-up item requested by Director Meyers at the November Finance 
Committee meeting.   
 
A copy of the Reserve Policies Survey is attached for review by the Committee.  
 
Staff will be available for discussion at the meeting. 
 
 
Attachment: Survey of Reserve Policies   
 

Agenda Item 8 

133



As of Agency Reserve Policy Minimum/Target Reserve Requirement Maximum Reserve Requirement Debt Outstanding in most recent ACFR
Operating 90 days (25%) of future fiscal year operating expenditures N/A

2017 Capital 1 times the future 5-year average annual CIP 2 times the future 5-year average annual CIP
City of Encinitas Water Bonds and Notes: 

$204,4371

Rate Stabilization
15% of future fiscal year water rate (commodity) and service 
charge (fixed) revenue

N/A

Reserve 
Policy

Operating
45% (City General Fund) operating expenditures
20% (Water and Sewer Funds) operating expenditures

N/A
City of Poway Water Revenue Bonds: 

$14,699,489
Capital 5-year Average CIP 5-year Average CIP 

Operating 60 days of current year operating expenses less depreciation 90 days of current year operating expenses less depreciation

2021 Capital
Sum of paygo portion of 100% of current year CIP + 50% of next 
year CIP + 25% 3rd year CIP

Paygo portion of first 3 years of 10-year CIP No outstanding debt since FY 2020

Rate Stabilization
100% of the cost to replaces local water supplies with SDCWA 
untreated supplies for the year

Sum of:
*1 year cost to replace local supply with SDCWA untreated
*1 year principal and interest cost of Debt
*25% of 1 year's Variable water revenue

2023 Operating/Rate 
Stabilization

3 months of operating expenses + 1 year of interest expense on 
debt services + 10% of gross revenue

6 months of operating expenses + 1yr of interest expense on 
debt services + 20% of gross revenue

As of FY 22: $48,634,325

Capital
1 year of CIP + 1 year principal portion of debt services + an 
undisclosed amount for the "Major CIP Fund"

2 year CIP + 1 year principal portion on debt services + an 
undisclosed amount for the "Major CIP Fund"

2024 
Budget

Operating/Capital 
(Designated Reserves)

60 days of annual operating expenses. Should the Authority 
determine to target a higher credit rating level, these 
minimums will be adjusted accordingly.

N/A $22,364,167 

Rate Stabilization

Equal to the volume of M&I wholesale water purchases for a 
six month period multiplied by the most current SDCWA 
Treatment Rate and rounded to the nearest one-hundred 
thousand.

Equal to the volume of M&I wholesale water purchases 
required for a 24 month period when no surface reservoir 
water is available multiplied by the most current SDCWA 
Melded Untreated M&I Supply Rate
and Transportation Rate, rounded to the nearest one-hundred 
thousand

Operating 90 days of  budgeted operating expenses 120 days of  budgeted operating expenses

2023 ACFR Capital

 At the end of each fiscal year, any unspent budgeted capital 
improvement PayGo amounts that are not already 
appropriated will be reallocated to this fund and will be used in 
a future year’s capital budget, allowing for the completion of 
projects that span fiscal years.  

No min or max specified $1,770,000 (will be paid off this year)

Rate Stabilization 5% water billing revenue 10% water billing revenue

Survey of Reserve Policies  

San Dieguito Water District

Santa Fe Irrigation District

Poway

Sweetwater 

Helix 

Padre dam

\\hq-fs-01\Departments\Finance\Finance Committee\Finance Committee Meetings PDF\FY 23-24\February 7, 2024\8 - DRAFT Survey of Reserve Policies 1.25.24

134



As of Agency Reserve Policy Minimum/Target Reserve Requirement Maximum Reserve Requirement Debt Outstanding in most recent ACFR

Operating 
Sixty (60) days of the current fiscal year’s operating budget, less 
depreciation/amortization.

One hundred and twenty (120) days of the current fiscal year’s 
operating budget, less depreciation/amortization.

2021 
Recycled 

COSS
Capital

100% of the current fiscal year’s CIP, 50% of following fiscal 
year’s CIP, and 25% of the succeeding fiscal year’s CIP

100% of next 3 years CIP $34,053,239 

Rate Stabilization
One year of debt service payments + 25% of the current fiscal 
year’s budgeted sales revenue

One year of debt service payments + 100% of the current fiscal 
year’s budgeted sales revenue

2014 
Policy

Operating 
No minimum specified. Operating reserve deficiencies will be 
funded by transfers from rate stabilization, then replacement 
reserves, then by budgeted surplus from increased rates.

180 days of annual O&M expenditures

Capital Next 3 years of CIP replacement costs Next 10 years of CIP replacement costs $69,590,774 

Rate Stabilization

No minimum specified. Fund receives transfers in from 
replacement reserve in excess of replacement reserve limit. 
Fund is used to restore reserves to their limits in subsequent 
years while holding rates for commodity and recovery of fixed 
costs steady.

No max specified. If, after restoring reserves, balance continues 
to increase, rates will be lowered to extent deemed necessary 
by management, and the board.

2025 
Budget

Operating Minimum $5,000,000 for emergency repairs
Maximum balance of 45 days of average annual operating 
expenditures

Capital N/A N/A $2,011,030,557 

Rate Stabilization
Financial impact of 2.5 years of wet weather or mandatory 
restrictions.

Financial impact of 3.5 years of wet weather or mandatory 
restrictions.

Operating 60 days of annual O&M expenditures 120 days of annual O&M expenditures
Capital average annual CIP expenditures over the next 10 years five years of average annual 10-year CIP expenditures $47,067,276 

2023 
Policy

Rate Stabilization 25% of estimated net water sales in the current fiscal year 50% of estimated net water sales for the next two fiscal years

Pension Stabilization
1 year average of Projected Future Employer Contributions for 
UAL Payment over the next 5 fiscal years.

1 year average of Projected Future Employer Contributions for 
UAL Payment over the next 5 fiscal years.

SDCWA

San Elijo JPA 

Olivenhain

Vallecitos

\\hq-fs-01\Departments\Finance\Finance Committee\Finance Committee Meetings PDF\FY 23-24\February 7, 2024\8 - DRAFT Survey of Reserve Policies 1.25.24

135


	AGENDA
	5. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE NOVEMBER 2, 2023
REGULAR FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING
	6. REVIEW OF 2024 WASTEWATER RATE STUDY WITH RAFTELIS FINANCIAL
CONSULTANTS
	7. REVIEW OF DISTRICT INVESTMENTS AND CASH REPORT FOR THE FOURTH
QUARTER OF 2023 (DECEMBER 2023)
	7a. UPDATE LIST OF OMWD APPROVED INVESTMENT BROKERAGE FIRMS
	8. RECEIVE REPORT ON SURVEY OF RESERVE POLICIES (INFORMATIONAL
ITEM)



